
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 
 
 

January 4, 2023 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Ridgewood Trails  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.ridgewoodtrailscdd.com 

 
December 22, 2022 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Ridgewood Trails Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, January 4, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity Center, 845 
Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida 32065.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

 

 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments (for agenda items listed below) 
  
 III. Organizational Matters 
  A. Appointment of Supervisors to Fill Vacant Seats 
 
  B. Oath of Officer for Newly Appointed Supervisors 
 
  C. Consideration of Resolution 2023-01, Election of Officers 
 
 IV. Consideration of Request by Freedom HOA to Amend the District’s Boundaries 

to Remove the Freedom Section 
 
 V. Designation of Hearing Date to Adopt Rates 
 
 VI. Consideration of Resolution 2023-02, Regarding Records Retention Policy 
  
 VII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
 
 B.  Engineer  



         
 C.  Manager  
 
 D.  Operation Manager  
  
 E.  Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. Landscape Inspection Report 
 
 VIII. Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 
 
 IX. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Meeting 
 
  B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule  
 
 D.  Approval of Check Register 
  
 X. Next Meeting Scheduled for:  March 1, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge 

Amenity Center  
 
 XI. Adjournment 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



 NR 

OBJECTIVE 

Strong problem-solver, 
highly organized and 
analytical thinker seeks a 
position that I will excel in as 
well as help others by 
investigating all angles and 
leaving no stone unturned.  

SKILLS 

• Analytical thinker 
• Proficient in Microsoft  
• Proficient in Windows 

10 
• Time management 
• Ability to learn and 

excel quickly 
• Management and 

Supervisory skills.  
• Ability to stay calm 

under pressure 
 

NICOLE RUSS 
RECEPTION AND ACCOUNTING – AR / 904-540-5622 

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

EXPERIENCE 

RECEPTION AND ACCOUNTING • LIBERTY LAW PLLC. • OCTOBER  
2022 TO CURRENT 

• Answers multiline phones. 
• Posts all payments received from clients. 
• Prepares discovery for trial and mediation for attorneys on 

staff.  
• Drafts and E-Files documents for our clients.  
• Uses multiple databases to via network and internet to pull 

data from.  
• Communicates daily with opposing counsel and opposing 

pro se parties in on going cases.   
• Prepares and emails retainer agreements, promissory 

notes and other documentation to new clients when they 
retainer the firm for representation.  

• Handles the calendar for 2 attorneys and 3 paralegals.  

BUSINESS OPERATIONS SPECIALIST • PACE CENTER FOR GIRLS• 
OCTOBER 2021 TO OCTOBER 2022 

• Prepares deposits and performs AR functions 
• Monitors the aging of accounts receivables  
• Identifies and communicates financial and compliance 

issues to the finance director. 
• Assists in maintaining strong internal controls to ensure 

compliance with GAAP as well as government and other 
regulators. 

• Performs other accounting activities as needed.  
• Performs monthly reconciliations to ensure accuracy of 

financial statements 



NR NICOLE RUSS 
 PURCHASING MANAGER / 904-540-5622 

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068  

 

 

2 

• Verifies pledges per donor database to financial systems 
and prepares reconciliation as well as resolve any 
differences in the system. 

PURCHASING MANAGER • NORTH FLORIDA GLASS & ALUMINUM • 
NOVEMBER 2020 TO OCTOBER 2021 

• Posts all invoices while making sure to investigate there 
are no duplicates as well as ensuring all charges are valid.  

• Places orders for contract jobs, service jobs and residential 
jobs making sure that the orders do not go over budget 
and all charges are accurate.   

• The use of multiple databases to gather all the facts to 
ensure accuracy of orders. 

QUALITY ANALYST • AAT OMEGA • JULY 2020 TO NOVEMBER 2020 
• Inspection of all parts for quality and to ensure they are 

meeting ISO900/9100 standards. 
• Identifies non-conforming parts, writes reports on non-

conformance. 

EDUCATION 

B.A.S. BUSINESS MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISION • AUGUST 2021 
TO PRESENT• FLORIDA STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE 
Bachelor of Applied Science in Business Management and 
Supervision.  Graduation set for Spring 2023 

A.S. CRIMINAL JUSTICE • JANUARY 2019 TO MAY 2021• FLORIDA 
STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE 
Associates of science in Criminal Justice.  Graduated with High 
Honors and 3.81 GPA 



NR NICOLE RUSS 
 PURCHASING MANAGER / 904-540-5622 

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068  

 

 

3 

GED • 2000 • CASSADAGA JOB CORPS 
Obtained my GED and my Driver’s license while attending job 
corps.  

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE OR LEADERSHIP 

October 2020, Half Penny for Duval Schools 
• Called local duval county registered voters to educate 

them on the half penny for duval schools and to encourage 
them to vote for it.  

 
January 2020, Member of the National Society of Leadership and 
Success.  
 
January 2020, Member of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society. 

  

 



































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



RESOLUTION 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 
Development District at a regular business held on January 4, 2023 desires to elect the below 
recited persons to the offices specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 1.  The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
     Chairman 

    Vice Chairman 

  Marilee Giles  Secretary 

  Marilee Giles  Treasurer 

  James Oliver  Assistant Treasurer (s) 

  Daniel Laughlin  

  Darrin Mossing  

  Howard McGaffney  

  James Oliver  Assistant Secretary 

  Daniel Laughlin   

  Darrin Mossing  

  Howard McGaffney  

    

    

    

  PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 4TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2023. 
   
 Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
   
 Secretary / Assistant Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Ridgewood Trails 
 Community Development District 

475 W. Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL 32092 
Phone: 904-940-5850  Fax: 904-940-5899 

 

4871-0197-3565.4  

 

Dear Homeowner, 
You are receiving this letter because you are a resident of the Ridgewood Trails Community 
Development District (the “District” or “CDD”).  At the District’s November 2, 2022 meeting, the 
District’s Board and staff engaged in a Q&A session regarding the request from a large number of 
residents in the Freedom portion of Azalea Ridge (“Freedom Neighborhood”) to be removed from 
the District.  A written request provided by the Freedom Neighborhood is included for reference. 
The Freedom Neighborhood’s written request was not prepared or reviewed for accuracy by the 
District. 
Because the removal of the Freedom Neighborhood from the District will impact the entire Azalea 
Ridge community and the District’s assessment levels, the Board is sending the enclosed FAQ 
sheet to all residents in the District to allow residents the opportunity to review and provide input 
on the subject.    
YOUR COMMENTS, QUESTIONS, SUPPORT OR OBJECTION ON THE REQUEST 
FOR THE CDD TO SUPPORT THE REMOVAL OF THE FREEDOM NEIGHBORHOOD 
FROM THE CDD CAN BE DIRECTED TO DISTRICT MANAGER MARILEE GILES 
AT MGILES@GMSNF.COM AT ANY TIME.  COMMENTS WILL ALSO BE 
RECEIVED BY THE BOARD IN PERSON AT THE DISTRICT’S NEXT MEETING: 
 

JANUARY 4, 2023 AT 6:00 PM  
PLANTATION OAKS ATHLETIC CENTER 
845 OAKLEAF PLANTATION PARKWAY  

ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA 32065.   
 

Please note the revised meeting location.  The District is holding its January meeting at this larger 
venue in anticipation of more attendees. 
Please read the enclosures for additional information.   

 
       Sincerely, 

 
       Board of Supervisors for the  

Ridgewood Trails CDD 
  



  

4871-0197-3565.4  

  

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS REGARDING BOUNDARY 
AMENDMENT TO REMOVE THE FREEDOM NEIGHBORHOOD 

 
1.   What is the Freedom Neighborhood requesting? 

The Freedom Neighborhood is requesting that the District’s boundaries be amended to 
remove the 132 lots and common areas included in the Freedom Neighborhood.   

2. What benefits do the landowners within Freedom Neighborhood receive from the 
CDD? 
A. Access to the CDD’s two pools, fitness center, and amenity center.  While most 

Freedom Neighborhood landowners stated that they do not use the CDD’s 
amenities because they prefer to use the Freedom Neighborhood’s amenities, 
access rights to the CDD’s amenities are still available. 

B. CDD’s stormwater system (lakes, pipes, inlets, etc.) serves the roads that provides 
access to the Freedom Neighborhood. 

C. Landscaping and entry monuments contribute to the entire Azalea Ridge 
community’s aesthetics. 

D. Additional detail for the improvements and services provided by the CDD are 
contained in the CDD’s budget, which is available at ridgewoodtrailscdd.com. 
These expenses are generally identified as Administrative Expenses, Amenity 
Center Expenses, and Grounds Maintenance Expenses.  The budget includes 
descriptions of each line item. 

3. If the Freedom Neighborhood is no longer part of the District, how do their rights 
change? 
If the Freedom Neighborhood is removed from the District, then the residents from the 
Freedom Neighborhood would no longer be able to access the District’s facilities, common 
areas and services.  The Freedom Neighborhood would be required to return amenity 
access cards, and would no longer be authorized to use the pools, amenity center, gym, 
parks, and playgrounds.   However, it is not possible to remove the other benefits described 
in Question 2 as they are part of the District’s public infrastructure, and it is difficult to 
prevent usage unless there are access control systems in place. 

4.  How would removing the Freedom Neighborhood impact the CDD’s operations and 
budget? 
A. Potential reduction in overall amenity usage because the Freedom Neighborhood 

will no longer be able to access it, but this change is unlikely to impact amenity 
operations or the Amenity Center Expenses.   

B.   No change to the CDD’s administrative obligations (i.e., obligation to conduct an 
annual audit, provide a website, and manage the operation of the CDD’s 
improvements) or changes to the Administrative Expenses. 



  

4871-0197-3565.4  

  

C. No change to the CDD’s grounds maintenance responsibilities (i.e., field 
supervision, electric and water costs for landscaping, landscape maintenance and 
replacement costs) or Grounds Maintenance Expenses. 

5. How would removing the Freedom Neighborhood impact the CDD’s assessments?  
The loss of Freedom Neighborhood assessments is anticipated to cause an increase in 
assessments to the 559 lots remaining in the CDD.  Using the Fiscal Year 2023 budget 
as an example, this would result in an additional $250 - $300 per year in operation 
and maintenance assessments to the non-Freedom Neighborhood landowners. 

6. How does a boundary amendment work? 
A petition requesting the boundary amendment must be filed with Clay County by the CDD 
or by a landowner. The requirements of the petition are described in Section 190.046, 
Florida Statutes.  The boundary amendment must be approved by Clay County. 

7. Who must consent to the boundary amendment? 
A. Written consent from ALL landowners of lots and common area properties, if any, 

to be removed from the CDD must be included with the petition.   
B. Consent of the CDD would be represented by resolution of the Board of 

Supervisors, but the CDD is not required to provide consent and doing so is a Board 
decision. Individual consent of the 559 landowners of lots that would remain in the 
CDD is not required. 

8.   What is the likelihood that Clay County approves the boundary amendment petition? 
If the CDD supports the boundary amendment and it meets the legal requirements, then the 
County is likely to approve it.  If the CDD does not support the boundary amendment, it is 
less likely that the County will approve it. 

9.   Who would pay for the boundary amendment process? 
If the CDD chooses to file the petition, then the CDD could pay for it.  If a landowner(s) 
files the petition, the landowner(s) pays for it.  At this point, the boundary amendment and 
associate costs are anticipated to be undertaken by the Freedom Neighborhood.   

10. What notice did purchasers within the Freedom Neighborhood have regarding the 
CDD’s existence?  

 Notice of the CDD is available through three sources:   
A. Notice of Establishment filed in Clay County official records describes the CDD 

and its boundaries and is reflected in a title search. 
B. Disclosure of Public Financing filed in Clay County official records describes the 

types of improvements the CDD was anticipated to own and operate and is reflected 
in a title search. 

C. Horton sales agreement is required by statute to contain immediately prior to the 
space reserved in the contract for the signature of the purchaser, the following 



  

4871-0197-3565.4  

  

disclosure statement in boldfaced and conspicuous type which is larger than the 
type in the remaining text of the contract:  
“THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MAY IMPOSE AND LEVY TAXES OR ASSESSMENTS, OR BOTH TAXES 
AND ASSESSMENTS, ON THIS PROPERTY. THESE TAXES AND 
ASSESSMENTS PAY THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND 
MAINTENANCE COSTS OF CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES AND 
SERVICES OF THE DISTRICT AND ARE SET ANNUALLY BY THE 
GOVERNING BOARD OF THE DISTRICT. THESE TAXES AND 
ASSESSMENTS ARE IN ADDITION TO COUNTY AND OTHER LOCAL 
GOVERNMENTAL TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS AND ALL OTHER TAXES 
AND ASSESSMENTS PROVIDED FOR BY LAW.” 



November 25, 2023 

Ridgewood Trails CDD 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Dear Ridgewood Trails CDD Board of Supervisors,  

Please accept this letter as formal notice that all landowners located within the boundaries of 

the Freedom at Azalea Ridge HOA be removed from the boundaries of Ridgewood Trails CDD.  

In October 2021 DR Horton transferred ownership of all common areas, amenities and roads 

located within the Freedom Section to the Freedom at Azalea Ridge HOA. This also includes 

property located outside of the gated area at the entrance to the Freedom community. 

Freedom at Azalea Ridge HOA is solely responsible for all financial obligations, maintenance and 

operations of any and all lands and facilities within these boundaries. 

Freedom at Azalea Ridge Homeowners Association cites the following Statute as our main 

reason to be removed from this community development district as well as others listed below: 

190.031 – Mandatory use of certain district facilities and services. —To the 

full extent permitted by law, the district shall require all lands, buildings, 

premises, persons, firms, and corporations within the district to use the water 

management and control facilities and water and sewer facilities of the district.  

Freedom at Azalea Ridge Homeowners Association is a privately held community that receives 

no compensation from Ridgewood Trails CDD in order to maintain our property. All of our 

infrastructure, roads, amenity center, swimming pool, two ponds, parks, storm water retention, 

sewer, potable and reclaimed water is fully contained within, and paid for by our community. 

The county has provided maps that provide us with the proof of this. 

The CDD Board of Supervisors has stated by their words and actions that the CDD does not have 

any obligations either financially or operationally for anything owned by the Freedom HOA. 

 Freedom at Azalea Ridge's 132 residences provide the Ridgewood Trails Community 

Development District $108,712.77 per year, based on the Fiscal 2023 budget. Should the board 

of supervisors grant us the boarder amendment, this would cost each homeowner in Azalea 

Ridge $194.48 additional per year or $16.21 per month, based on the Fiscal 2023 budget and 

the 559 remaining residences in Azalea Ridge.  

Ridgewood Trails Community Development District attorney  contends that our residents 

benefit from the roads and storm water system s that lead to the entrance of Freedom at 

Azalea Ridge. However, these roads are county roads that anyone has access to, both roads and 

storm water systems are maintained by Clay County. 



It was also stated that the Freedom residents benefit from the use of the Ridgewood Trails 

Amenities. That is correct but by a snapshot of dates recorded by the Management Company 

they found that it was less than 5% of the Freedom residents that were using the amenities in 

that period of time. If this amendment of boundaries is approved it is our understanding that 

any residents who want to continue utilizing amenities owned by Ridgewood Trails can do so at 

a yearly cost determined at that time by the Board of Supervisors. 

Recently the CDD and the Azalea ridge HOA have shared expenses for activities put on in the 

Azalea Ridge community, however at the last few CDD meetings that Freedom residents 

inquired if the CDD would contribute anything toward any Freedom expenses they were denied 

by using the argument that the CDD does not have any obligation to the Freedom Section 

whatsoever. 

What is Freedom at Azalea Ridge getting for its financial contribution? Well basically nothing, 

and will also have to contribute equally for any future increase in the CDD budget or be 

assessed for any improvements or modifications to their amenities not included in their annual 

budget. 

The above-mentioned reasons are a very good argument as to why our Freedom residents are 

asking to be removed from the boundaries of the Ridgewood Trails CDD. 

The Freedom HOA board has already begun to get the notarized signatures of all property 

owners within the Freedom section on the Consent Form of Landowner Boundary Amendment 

that we will file with the Clay County Clerk of Courts along with our statement of why we should 

be removed from this district.  

It is our hope that when the Board of Supervisors discuss and vote on this boundary 

amendment, they consider this not just from the financial benefit of our monetary contribution 

toward the CDD, but also from the perspective of what we contribute vs what we are getting 

back in return. I trust the Board will come to a fair and proper decision. Thank you for your 

consideration and vote on our request. 

Sincerely 

Freedom at Azalea Ridge HOA Board of Directors 

Thomas Palanica 

Bruce Johnson 

Orvia Shroyer  

James Barrs 

William Lamoreaux  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



  

 

Kutak Rock LLP 

107 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

office 850.692.7300 

Katie Buchanan 
850.692.7300 

katie.buchanan@kutakrock.com 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Ridgewood Trails Community Development District  

 

FROM: Katie S. Buchanan 

 

DATE:  January 4, 2023 

 

RE:  Retention Requirements for Transitory Messages and Electronic Records Updates 

 

 

On May 6, 2010, the District approved Resolution 2010-06, adopting a policy relating to 

the retention and disposition of its public records.  The District’s Record Retention Policy currently 

remains in full force and effect.  In order to ensure the District’s record retention practices remain 

economically feasible and technologically practical, we are offering some clarification regarding 

the retention period for records of short-term value.  Additionally, we propose modifications to 

designate the electronic record as the official record of the district and allow for disposal of paper 

duplicate copies unless prohibited by any law, rule or ordinance.   

 According to the General Records Schedule for State and Local Government Agencies 

(“GS1-SL”)1 with which all community development districts must comply, records retention 

requirements “apply to records regardless of the format in which they reside.”2 This means that 

electronic communications, which include emails, instant messages, text messages, multimedia 

messages, chat messages, social networking, voicemail/ voice messaging, or other 

communications via electronic messaging technology or device, must be retained in accordance 

with the applicable section of the GS1-SL.  Retention periods for electronic communications “are 

determined by the content, nature, and purpose of records, and are set based on their legal, fiscal, 

administrative, and historical values, regardless of the format in which they reside or the method 

by which they are transmitted.”3 

Electronic communications “created primarily to communicate information of short-term 

value” may fall under the Transitory Messages schedule set forth in GS1-SL.4  Transitory 

Messages do not “formalize or perpetuate knowledge and do not set policy, establish guidelines or 

 
1 Incorporated by reference in Rule 1B-24.003(1)(a), F.A.C. 
2 General Records Schedule for State and Local Government Agencies, Section V, Electronic Records. 
3 Id. at Records Retention Schedules, Electronic Communications.  
4 Id. at Records Retention Schedules, Transitory Messages, Item #146. 



 

Page 2 

  

 

  

procedures, certify a transaction, or become a receipt.”  Examples of Transitory Messages include, 

but are not limited to: 

· reminder messages (“don’t forget the upcoming meeting”);  

· email messages with short-lived or no administrative value (“thank you”) 

· telephone messages lacking content (“Ms. Smith called – please return her call”);  

· recipient copies of announcements of District sponsored events (“daily events 

email”); and, 

· news releases received by the District strictly for informational purposes and 

unrelated to District programs or activities.  

The retention requirement for Transitory Messages is "[r]etain until obsolete, superseded 

or administrative value is lost."5  For example, an email message notifying employees of an 

upcoming meeting would only have value until the meeting has been attended or the employee 

receiving the message has marked the date and time in the calendar, at which time the message 

could be disposed of.  In other words, an electronic communication intended for short-term value 

does not need to be retained once it is no longer needed.  Unlike most other public records, the 

District may dispose of a transitory message once it is obsolete, superseded, or has lost its 

administrative value without having to document the disposition of the record, unless the record 

has been microfilmed or scanned and will serve as the record copy.6      

 

 
5 Id. 
6 See Rule 1B-24.003(9)(d), F.A.C. 



 

 

RESOLUTION 2023-02 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RIDGEWOOD 
TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING 
CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE DISTRICT’S RECORD RETENTION 
POLICY; ADDRESSING CONFLICTS AND SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the Ridgewood Trails Community 
Development District (“District”) to adopt rules to govern the administration of the District and 
to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct of district business; and 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2010, the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 
Development District (“Board”), adopted Resolution 2010-06 providing for the adoption of the 
District’s Record Retention Policy (“Policy”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Policy requires the District “retain all public records relating to District 
business until the Board of Supervisors amends the Records Retention Policy to address the 
disposition of the same”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interest of the District to amend the Record 
Retention Policy as described in more detail in paragraph 2 below; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
1. CONFLICTS.  This Resolution is intended to amend, in part, Resolution 2010-06, 

which remains in full force and effect except as otherwise provided herein. All terms of Resolution 
2010-06 that are not amended by this Resolution apply as if those terms were fully set forth 
herein.  All District resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this Resolution are, to the 
extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 

 
2. AMENDMENT. The Records Retention Policy is hereby amended by inserting the 

language indicated in single underlined text (indicated textually in the same manner as the 
following example: underlined text) and by deleting the language indicated by strikethrough text 
(indicated textually in the same manner as the following example: stricken text) as set forth 
herein: 

The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the applicable provisions 
of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the Division of Library 
and Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) pursuant to 
Section 257.36, Florida Statutes, and the General Records Schedules established by 
the Division.  However, the District hereby extends the minimum retention 



 

 

guidelines contained in the General Records Schedules so that the District will 
retain all public records relating to District business until the Board of Supervisors 
amends the Records Retention Policy to address the disposition of the same.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District shall retain Transitory Messages until 
the Transitory Message is obsolete, superseded or administrative value is lost in 
accordance with the General Records Schedule for State and Local Government 
Agencies, Item #146, as incorporated by reference in Rule 1B-24.003(1)(a), Florida 
Administrative Code. The District hereby determines the electronic record shall be 
considered the official record of all public records relating to District business and 
any paper originals are designated as duplicates which may be disposed of unless 
prohibited by any law, rule or ordinance.  To the extent the above statute, rules, or 
schedules are amended or supplemented in the future, the District’s Records 
Retention Policy shall automatically incorporate such amendment or supplement 
provided that such automatic amendment does not permit the disposition of District 
records without further action of the Board.  The Records Retention Policy shall 
remain in full force and effect until such time as the Board amends the Policy.   

 
 3. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of 
this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect as of January 4, 2023. 
  
 Introduced, considered favorably, and adopted this 4th day of January 2023. 
 
ATTEST: RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
______________________________   __________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



  

1/4/2023 

 

  

Azalea Ridge at 

Ridgewood Trails 

Community Development District 

Amenity Management Report 

Taylor Tennison 
AMENITY MANAGER 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.  
 
 

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 1 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 

Amenity Management Report 
January 4, 2023 

 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Taylor Tennison 
  Amenity Manager 
 
RE: Azalea Ridge Amenity Management Report – January 4, 2023 
 

The following is a summary of items related to the field operations, 
maintenance, and amenity management of Azalea Ridge.  

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 2 

Community Updates 

 
MAINTENANCE 

• Clubroom a/c condensing unit was replaced. 

• Replaced two amenity center parking lot light pole blubs with LEDs. Third light pole bulb 

will be replaced in the coming weeks. 

• Fitness center renovation 

o Installation of crown molding; sand, caulk, and touch-up paint the baseboards 

and door are complete. Tv’s, mirror, and new weight bench were installed.  

o Additional camera was installed. 

o Seeking quotes for new weight rack. 

• Remaining two pergolas will be removed by March 1st. 

• Two light poles will be installed on Azalea Ridge Blvd. near Freedom in the coming 

months.  

• Supply Works – replacing all RR toilet paper holders and paper towel dispensers at no 
cost to commercial grade product.  Product is on order. 

• Remove rust from RR stalls/walls, paint non-slip RR floors complete before March 1st. 

• Remove rust from pool floors complete before March 1st. 

• Replace missing lock on Women’s RR stall. Lock is on order. 

• Access control installation for RR doors, replacing broken card reader for social hall door, 
and replacing broken card reader for pool gate. All card readers are on backorder.  
 
EVENTS 

• Food truck schedules have been planned through January 2023.   
o We have 1 food truck at the Azalea Ridge amenity center every Thursday night 

from 5-8pm. 

• Winter Event CDD/HOA event – December 17, 2022 

o The event went great! Mr. & Mrs. Clause made an appearance. There was hot 

chocolate, a sleigh ride, and tons of arts and crafts.  

• Movie on the Lawn – January 7, 2023 

o “Lyle, Lyle, Crocodile” showtime at 8pm on the soccer field.  

• Advertising for Lifeguards – Homeowners can contact management if they’re interested. 

• Room rentals and programs 

o Time slots are on the rental forms. 

o Consideration of changing rental fees. 

 

 

  



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 3 

 
 
 
 
For any questions or comments regarding the above 
information please contact Taylor Tennison, Amenity Manager, 
at Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com. 

 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Taylor Tennison 

 
 

 

Conclusion 

mailto:Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



 / 1 6

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: 1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

General Information

Customer Focus Areas

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Tuesday, Dec 20, 2022

Monday, Mar 20, 2023

Taylor Tennison 

Willie Perez Davila 



 / 2 6

Carryover Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

Hollies trees will be
trimmed back to the top of

the fence

1

1



 / 3 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

We will need to add some
more Jack Frost in this

shrub line

1

1



 / 4 6

Recommendations for Property Enhancements

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

Recommend removal and
replacing the Live Oak in

the common area

Recommend this new
Landscape to the back

entrance

1

2

1

2



 / 5 6

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

We have sent the
information to the Fence

company and awaiting the
installation date.

1

1



 / 6 6

Completed Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

The Common areas are
being maintained.

1

1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, November 2, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge 

Amenity Center, 1667 Azalea Ridge Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Marty Genska Chairman 
 Jacqui Proctor Miller Vice Chairperson 
 William Barnhouse Supervisor 
 Dennis Schroyer Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Taylor Tennison Amenity Manager 
 Jay Soriano GMS 
 Willie Perez Brightview 
 Several Residents 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the November 2, 2022 meeting.   

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 The next item taken out of order. 

E. Amenity Manager 

1. Report 

 Ms. Tennison reviewed the amenity management report copy of which was included in the 

agenda package.  

 

2. Landscape Inspection Report 

 Mr. Perez gave an overview of the landscape inspection report; a copy of the quality site 

assessment was included in the agenda package. 

 Mr. Perez left the meeting at this time.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

2 

 

 Attorney – Boundary Amendment 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I would like to go through some of the fundamental steps necessary 

to have a boundary amendment to the district because I think that is what most of you are here for.  

I will give you the background, explain to the board the impacts that a boundary amendment would 

have on the district then we can open it up to public comment so each of you can have up to 3 

minutes to provide your opinions and feedback on whether the board should decide to authorize 

the boundary amendment.  It is going to be difficult to manage this number of people if we don’t 

have some sort of order.  If you can’t hear me in the back, just raise your hand and I will try to talk 

as loudly as I can.   

 The district is a unit of local government, and it was established by Clay County.  It is not 

something that the four members here can change.  If the district were to change its boundaries 

Clay County would have to consent to that change.  Before Clay County will even consider a 

boundary amendment, all the members of the Freedom Neighborhood would have to consent to it.  

That means that all 132 lots would have to provide a notarized consent saying that we want to be 

removed from the district.  Then, the board would decide whether the CDD wants to support the 

process because I think the board in the past has determined that they don’t want to spend their 

budget, the money that is paid by all 691 lots towards something that only benefits 132 lots.  It 

will be up to the 132 lots to find a lawyer and work with that lawyer to put together the petition to 

file with Clay County to have the county consider whether the boundary amendment is appropriate.   

 Then the question is how do I think the county would respond to this request.  I think if the 

board supported it and there were all 132 consents, the county would probably go along with it, 

but I don’t speak for the county.  I’m saying it is likely to happen and if the board doesn’t support 

it or you don’t have 132 consents, it is very unlikely the county would consider it at all.   

 As we discussed, the landowners would be required to pay for the process and it would be 

up to the landowners to consider how to fund it and manage it.  The substance of the question is 

what factors should be considered as to whether Freedom should be removed from the district’s 

boundaries.  One of the two things I think about here is whether the land in Freedom actually 

benefit from the services or the improvements the district provide and whether it is fair to the 

existing residents for Freedom to be removed.  I will go into this in two parts.  The first thing and 

I have heard this in meetings, there is a fair number of people who live in Freedom who don’t feel 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

3 

like they get any benefits from the CDD.  I think a lot of that opinion derived from the fact that 

they don’t use the amenities here very frequently because they have their own.  I do want to point 

out that the CDD goes well beyond the amenity center.  The county owns the roads, the CDD does 

not.  What the CDD does own is the stormwater management system that the roads drain into and 

all of the ponds with the exception of the pond behind Freedom.  The CDD is responsible for the 

maintenance of the stormwater system that keeps the access to the Freedom Neighborhood in 

place.  Similarly, the CDD maintains the entry features, the landscaping, any streetlights on the 

roads, those are all CDD paid for improvements that I think it would be very difficult for anyone 

living in the community to say that they don’t benefit from, but that is there.  Understanding that 

those are things the CDD provides beyond amenities that everyone in the neighborhood benefit 

from proportionately.   

 Then there is the question of whether it is fair to change the status quo for a group that 

knowingly moved here knowing there was a CDD.  There are three places to look when you were 

trying to figure out whether you were part of the CDD.  The first is in the official records and it 

shows up in your title work and it is called a notice of establishment, it shows that the CDD lies 

upon your land, it is there.  The second is a disclosure of public financing, it tells you that the CDD 

issued bonds and what type of improvements they were going to construct, also recorded in the 

official records.  Lastly, in your purchase and sale agreement there is bold language in 14-point 

font that says this property is part of a CDD.  If that is not in there, take it to D.R. Horton and tell 

them they owe you money.  That is contract language that is required by statute.  You are buying 

into a CDD, it is in your purchase and sale agreement.  It is not required in a contract from an 

individual to an individual, but if you bought from a builder or Horton it is in your purchase and 

sale agreement.   

 Mr. Genska stated the one issue I have and it is coming from a homeowner standpoint not 

as chairman of the board, is I see that we have a budget based on 600+ residences.  For Freedom 

to move out we will lose the 132 homes that are part of that budget that are no longer a part of the 

budget, which means the balance of the 400+ homes have to replace that in our budget.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated that is correct.  To put some numbers on that if you were to lose 132 

lots, then you would have the budget deficit somewhere between $110,000 to $125,000 a year and 

the only way to recover that money is to increase the assessments on the remaining 559 lots and 

that is probably about $200 a year more on the remaining lots.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

4 

 One last point on the budget before we proceed, in looking at your budget I think it is very 

difficult to say that you see a noticeable decrease in your budget by removing the Freedom section 

because most of your costs are based on fixed contracts that are going to have to happen whether 

or not the number is 300, 400, 500 or 600, it doesn’t matter.  The only way to cover that gap is 

going to be to increase assessments.   

 Mr. Schroyer stated I agree if Freedom gets out of the CDD your fees will go up but there 

are ways to cut the costs.  Get new bids on management companies, new bids on this and that, the 

costs can be lowered, it may not compensate for the money that comes from Freedom but it would 

be less of a burden on you.  I’ve only been on the board for a couple months and there seems to be 

a lot of fat in these budgets that we can cut.   

 Mr. Barnhouse stated the last time we followed your recommendation about cutting the fat 

it actually cost us another $50,000.  We got rid of Tree Amigos because they wanted out and we 

had to get another landscaper and our cost almost doubled.  Every time we go out for a bid our 

costs could go up rather than down. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I do think that competitively bidding services is one way to look at 

costs, but in this environment it is more of a true-up on costs.  I don’t know what Marilee and Jay 

are seeing but in the 30 meetings I go to every month I have not had a contract come down in the 

last 12 months anywhere, they have gone up 10% to 15% in most cases.  It is a very hard time 

right now to look for apples to apples services at a lower cost.  Other places have not been 

successful.   

 Ms. Miller stated it would move faster if questions were not duplicated then move on to a 

different comment. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments  

 Mr. Palanica stated when you give your consideration to this, put yourself in our position.  

I’m the second resident here and it was explained very well what the CDD was to us originally.  

At that time there was a weight room and a small pool, there was no big pool.  When the decision 

was made to put the big pool in here and the Freedom pool was put in at the same time, it broke 

the barrier because there was no reason for the people back here in an over 55 community to use a 

pool that was kidney shape with 150 kids.  It separated the community.  Contrary to what you just 

said after we had conversations with our attorney, I called our county commissioner and the county 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

5 

commissioner referred me to the county attorney and I said this is what we want to do, what is the 

best procedure to do that.  She basically said coming to this meeting was the first step and 

depending on what happened in the first step would be dependent to what happens at the county.  

You said we need to go to the county first and petition. Did I misunderstand what you said? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated yes. 

 Mr. Palanica stated so this is our first step.  At your own admittance we contribute after 

this increase anywhere from $110,000 to $125,000 with what most of us see as zero cost to the 

CDD because all our amenities back there, our roads back there our sewer and the storm system 

are all self-contained.  We don’t have as-built drawings but we have the drawings as best as can 

be determined by the county, which shows the separation.  Other than the entrance to the 

community to get in and out we get zero benefit financially from the CDD.  A few times it was 

brought up two years ago what can you do for us when this first started the answer is we don’t 

have any obligation back to you so if you don’t have any obligation back to us, why are we paying 

all the money.  The comments came up that some people in the community use the amenities, 

meaning the weight room and the pool area for their grandchildren.  Anybody could use the space 

for $250 a year.   

 Mr. Genska asked I want to ask Freedom folks, do you want Tom to be your public 

speaker? 

 The response from the Freedom residents was yes. 

 Mr. Palanica asked what financial benefit do we gain other than the entrance? 

 Mr. Genska stated we have pulled the records on what the residents use. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated eight families accessed the amenities in the last month. 

 Mr. Soriano stated when you scan your card we don’t have a system that details everything 

and says this is a Freedom person, we have to go address by address and figure that out.  We 

definitely had more than eight but just from October and it came out to be about 12% usage for 

just October.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated to clarify that is not eight swipes of a card, that is eight families that 

had multiple swipes.   

 Mr. Soriano stated I would say the fitness center gets the most.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated with the 12% that you just described, the Freedom lots are roughly 

19% of your community.  The district’s budget is roughly $525,000 per year, the amenity complex 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

6 

is about half of that budget, so the other half of the budget goes towards the things we talked about 

earlier, managing the stormwater system, the landscaping, the monuments. 

 Mr. Palanica stated the only thing we are asking for is your consideration to have you look 

at this legitimately to where we are coming from. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I think the board will do that and I ask the same in reverse.   

 Ms. Campbell asked when D.R. Horton sold homes and told people there were no CDD 

fees, what was the responsibility of the board to allow them to have the signs saying no CDD fees 

up here?  I was at the closing table and questioned that but many people don’t get that.  I feel the 

board allowed that. 

 Mr. Genska stated we have nothing to do with selling homes and what was told.  When I 

closed on my house it was 100% disclosed there were CDD maintenance fees with your taxes.   

 Ms. Campbell stated there was no maintenance discussed it wasn’t on the sign.  I feel there 

is some responsible because the board drove up and down the road when those signs were posted. 

 Mr. Genska asked can you answer why the CDD board is not responsible for that? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated two parts, the first is and I’m speaking to my experience across the 

board not in this community.  I’m not telling you that your truth is not true.  What they frequently 

have on their signs is “no CDD fees* bond debt” in small letters.   

 Ms. Campbell stated that wasn’t true here. If this process is to take place it starts with Clay 

County, Clay County will require a notarized statement from every 132 parcels that are back there, 

then the board will determine whether or not you will approve it. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I will explain because clearly that was a confusing point.  The statute 

says that a petition and the only way to have a boundary amendment is to submit a petition to the 

county.  It must include the consent of all the landowners.  There is only two ways to file a petition, 

it can be filed by a landowner or it can be filed by the district and if the district files it, it has to 

include a resolution authorizing the boundary amendment.  I don’t want to tell you that you 

couldn’t file a petition without the district’s consent, but I think what Ms. Grimm indicated is that 

they are unlikely to consider it without the district’s consent.   

 A resident stated I think raising the fees from $50 to $150 is excessive. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we can’t raise fees without having a hearing so if the board chooses 

to consider it we would have to publish a notice, have another hearing where residents provide 

input then they take formal action, so that will not happen tonight.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

7 

 A resident stated I can see it from the sales office, no CDD fees and it talks about a flier 

sent out. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated just to be clear the first thing I see is up top, the operation and 

maintenance fees.  That is the fee that you pay to the CDD and that is at the top right.  Granted it 

is not called CDD fee but it is called operation and maintenance fee and it is separate and apart 

from the HOA fee line item.  There is HOA which in this paperwork is reduced to $90 a month, 

there is operation and maintenance fee 50 foot lot, $605 a year, 60 foot lot $733 a year.  I, 100% 

agree that this is not labeled correctly.  The bottom says, no CDD fees just like people have 

mentioned and it talks about using the CDD to pass on the cost of constructing infrastructure 

improvements.  Unless you were one of the first 15 people who lived here you do not pay that 

portion of CDD fees.  D.R. Horton funded the improvements in this neighborhood out of pocket 

and unlike Ridgewood Trails or Eagle Landing they have an operation and maintenance 

component of their assessment and then they have a debt service component.  You do not have the 

debt service component because D.R. Horton paid for the improvements here, the district did not.   

 A resident stated obviously, to get this approved, we either have to get the board to approve 

or go to the county.  Is that correct so far? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated it is both. 

 A resident stated we are talking about the amenity center we use 12%.  What happens in 

this proposal we all sign that we don’t use the amenity center?  That alleviates the cost of us using 

your things.  These are county streets and it doesn’t cost anything to drive on the county streets. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated it cost us money to maintain the stormwater system that serves the 

roads.   

 A resident stated that doesn’t service us because we have to pay our own sewer system in 

our fees. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated again, we are at a disconnect because from what I drove today and I 

drove it to make sure that I visually understood the neighborhood, you have to drive through the 

neighborhood to get to your gate. 

 A resident stated that is a county road. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated the county does not maintain the drainage system connected to those 

roads.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

8 

 A resident stated if we don’t get the board’s approval and it looks like we are not going in 

that direction then we have to have a petition signed by everybody in our community and send it 

to the county.  Is that the correct procedure? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I will not mislead you, what I said before is that in most cases it would 

be the district to file this petition and the county would be looking for the district’s support for that 

petition.  If a property owner files and they include all 132 consents I’m not confident that the 

county attorney will feel like that petition is sufficient if the district doesn’t also approve it.   

 Mr. Edson stated speaking for myself I would not be here tonight if the fee were $100 

because that $100 is something I feel might be appropriate.  The fee isn’t $100 and you seem to 

spend freely, buying trees to go up and down the road, locks on the bathroom, etc.  In Freedom we 

count every penny that we spend and I hate to spend our money on certain improvements and if 

you didn’t have our money you wouldn’t be able to do all the improvements.  What is fair if you 

were in our place?  There might be a compromise of some description because I think we all have 

a point. 

 A resident stated I got my tax bill today and on the bottom it had $799 CDD.  You are 

saying we are helping with the sewage driving through here, what about the Amazon driver, UPS 

driver, mailman, the visitors?  A lot of us are senior citizens living on social security and a pension 

and that’s it.  To pay that extra money, I’m confused. 

 A resident stated it sounds like it comes down to this clubhouse, the weight room and all 

that, coming from a different area from Freedom, why don’t you separate the two and if there are 

people who want to use these amenities, let them pay a little extra.  We used to pay $10 a month 

to get a card to use at the gym and it was in our Meadow Point 2 unit.  If somebody wants something 

above and beyond what we get in Freedom let them individually pay for it.  You are talking about 

drainage, I would give anything if my yard didn’t flood, this isn’t the best drainage in this area.  

Why didn’t D.R. Horton plan another entrance for our area?  This is what I would call access roads, 

but you are talking about drainage.  You may have a member fee and non-member fee, sounds like 

you rent this facility out to other people that may not be in this community.   

 A resident stated I have a problem paying a CDD fee because we still pay.  Everything 

comes out of our HOA.  We have volunteers to help do things in Freedom. 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

9 

 A resident stated when I signed for our house, we had to sit in a car and wait for them to 

come out and they walked you in and you sat in this little place that had glass over it and came out 

with papers you had to sign.  They told us nothing. 

 A resident stated go back to the budget.  Is there any differentiation, do you know the 

amount spent in our community?  You are going to be saving that amount. 

 Mr. Genska stated we don’t do anything behind the gate.   

 A resident stated if nothing is being spent back there the portion we are of your community 

is not being spent on us. 

 A resident stated I researched and have prints on everything, stormwater, water, electricity 

and nothing passes that gate.  The only exception is the electricity is joined together and the water 

is joined together.  We have nothing to do with this portion of this development. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we agree that the improvements behind the gate are funded by the 

people who live there.  These two concepts are not mutually exclusive, you do benefit from 

everything behind you gate and you do fund that completely on your own.  You choose not to use 

everything in front of the gate, especially the amenities but you could. 

 A resident stated there were 80 pages at my closing and nobody reads that and they stuck 

that in there and we got screwed.   

 A resident stated what D.R. Horton did to us has nothing to do with this CDD.  That is 

something we needed to take up with D.R. Horton ourselves and that is long gone.  With that said 

my question is did you not sit there at one board meeting and said I told Tom Palanica how to get 

out of the CDD.  We have no problem with you leaving the CDD.   

 Mr. Genska stated I have no problem if you want to get out of the CDD.   

 A resident stated if for some reason you decide that we have to put in a bigger parking lot 

or basketball hoops and have to take out a CDD bond, who pays for that? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated if the district chose to issue debt for improvements they would follow 

what they have done before and levy it on all the lots in the district.   You would get a notice saying 

this is what the district intends to do and I expect this room would be even more full.   

 A resident stated I don’t care if you have drainage for the road.?  It started at $500 and that 

is now $963 and we get nothing for that. 

 The following comments were made by several residents of Freedom: No money comes 

back to Freedom, have people pay a membership for amenities, breakdown of the budget, how 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

10 

long does the CDD stay in existence as long as it owns the improvements, do people from outside 

the CDD able to rent the room, Freedom was invited to the Veterans Day and Halloween festivities 

and chose not to come, why does the community not pay for their own celebration rather than the 

CDD, budget based on 609 homes, amount in budget for storm drainage, things paid for from CDD 

budget that should be paid out of HOA fees, multiple components to budget, administration, 

general maintenance and amenity, budget without Freedom, amount paid to HOA and CDD, need 

132 signatures on form to be provided by the attorney, then the board will have to decide to support 

it. 

 

 Public comment section closed after one hour 50 minutes. 

 

 Ms. Buchanan stated if you want to wait and see if they can get 132 signatures that is 

completely okay.  If you want to give them direction on where your head is right now, that is also 

okay.  If you want to look at other alternatives that might be some sort of compromise I’m happy 

to discuss those with you, but you tell me how you feel.   

 Ms. Miller stated I think the 500+ residents here should be aware of this potential. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated here are the things that I think are important.  We just started our 

current fiscal year so it will be impossible to make a change before next year.  If you wanted to tie 

the budget process to another audience comment participation on a boundary amendment we could 

do that merged notice.  What will happen is this is the compromise, if we wanted to say we will 

create two different classes of people in the community, the first that has access to the amenities 

and the second does not have access to the amenities.  The amenities cost is $266,000 a year and 

you divide that by 691 lots you get $336, that amount would come off the Freedom section, they 

would no longer have access to the amenities so it would significantly reduce their annual 

assessment.  But what that does is result in about $100 increase to everybody else.  I think we 

would have to notify people of that increase no matter what, but it would also be a parallel analysis 

of whether the boundary amendment is appropriate then you get input from everybody.  Right 

now, I think we have a higher representation from Freedom because they are invested in the 

process.  You don’t necessarily have anybody that knows that they may be looking at a higher 

assessment right now.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

11 

 Ms. Miller stated that is why we need to let the rest of the community know what the result 

is of the decisions we will make. 

 Ms. Giles stated we are at 8% inflation in 2022, inflation is going to continue to grow so 

her comment and quick math is based on 8% inflation in 2022.  Please do not hold her to those 

numbers next year when we come to the budget, instead of being at 8% inflation we are now at 

12% inflation.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated I have laid out this potential alternative.  The HOA has two months, 

do you want to see how far it gets?  It is not really an HOA process but that is the easiest way to 

say it, so Freedom has two months to see how many signatures they can get and in January you 

will have a better sense of whether it is even feasible if the board decides to support it.  Because 

at that point you can decide whether you are going to support the petition with the county of 

whether you want to propose an alternative as far as budgeting goes.  The reason I say this is 

because it takes time, staff time and money to pursue this alternative and I don’t know that you 

want us to invest in that until we know that Freedom has the capacity to move forth because they 

have consents from all 132 parties. 

 Mr. Genska asked can we do a parallel operation, put out a notice to residents that this is a 

possibility?   

 Ms. Buchanan stated you certainly can.   

 Mr. Genska stated you will provide their attorney with what they need to have then they 

can move on with that and we can move on with the rest of the residents so they are aware that we 

can readdress it once we are 100% sure.  I like to forewarn people. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated to make sure I understand, what we are doing is sending a form of 

communication, a letter or eblast or both. 

 Ms. Tennison stated the most affordable way would be email but to get a full outreach to 

everyone would be by letter.   

 Mr. Soriano stated that comes with a cost.   

 Mr. Genska stated maybe we do the email first then follow-up.   

 A resident of Freedom asked will you reimburse me for paper, ink and postage? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated because the Freedom section is initiating the change it is incumbent 

upon the Freedom section to bear the cost of this change.  When people receive this letter, you are 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

12 

going to have a very large crowd.  I don’t think this facility is the right place for this crowd.  

Marilee will look for a place to hold the meeting. 

 Ms. Giles stated residents call my office sometimes and complain because the 

transcriptionist didn’t catch word for word, sidebar conversations and loud noise and things like 

that are part of that problem.  When we can’t properly record the meetings we can’t properly 

transcribe them. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Suspension Letters 

 Ms. Buchanan outlined the incident that occurred after hours at the pool the parents of the 

minor child spoke on her behalf and after discussion the board took the following action. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Nolte seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with all in 
favor the suspension was lifted. 

 

 Ms. Giles stated there will be a second and confirming letter that puts that in writing.  

 Staff will also send a letter to the other individual involved, the parents will provide 

information on the individual who damaged the gate and staff will pursue restitution from that 

individual to the extent he can be identified. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Requests from Freedom 
HOA to Amend the District’s Boundaries to 
Remove the Freedom Section 

 This item taken earlier in the meeting under audience comments. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Agreement/Proposals for 
Water Management Services 

A. Agreement with The Lake Doctors 

B. Proposal from J&J Aquatics 

 Mr. Soriano stated we let them know that we were going to solicit bids.  We went to a few 

companies, Aquatic Management, Solitude, J&J and Lake Doctors our current provider.  

Originally, they were asking for a small increase, when they sent this proposal it is the same as last 

year’s budget.   

 Mr. Schroyer stated Lake Doctors is 12 visits a year, J&J is 20 visits a year.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

13 

 Mr. Soriano stated the spraying is going to be the same.  We can go back and ask if they 

will cut out some of the pricing if they do less.  A lot of times the price goes up when they are 

doing less because they figure they have to drop more chemicals and do more work when they are 

here once a month.  You will hear that from landscapers too.  There is an EPA limit that allows 

you to drop only so much chemical.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with all in 
favor the agreement with The Lake Doctors for fiscal year 2023 in 
the annual amount of $8,064 was approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Manager  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 D. Operation Manager’s Report –Report 

 Proposals from Brightview for Bush Hogging 

 Mr. Soriano stated the first proposal from Brightview is the powerline area to bush hog the 

three sections of powerline and in the past it might have been taken care of by the power company.  

Those lines are owned by Seminole Electric, it is an easement, we can’t develop it or do anything 

with it even though we own the ground those lines sit on.  They do have an easement mitigation 

process, but that is only if it is infringing on certain areas.  Right now, it is not that bad, the residents 

may say this is horrible, it is overgrown, it is not big enough or weedy enough for them to care 

about yet.  The last time they came out was a few years ago because they were doing transmission 

work on those lines, they wanted their trucks to be able to get through.  I have been requesting that 

they come out to maintain it and they have not been responsive and we don’t have the ability to 

force them to do that.  If we wanted to do this we would have to pay for it separately and that is 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

14 

one of the reasons I wanted unit prices in the RFP for things like bush hogging so we can compare 

when we needed something like this done.  By clearing that out you give access and that opens up 

to the back of Freedom and they have already asked us not to cut there.  I have two quotes, one for 

the whole thing and the other is a couple swaths next to the fence line.  We could hold this until 

we get to the growing season if we still have residents complaining and we will also see where we 

are in the budget.   

  

 Proposal from Brightview for Crape Myrtle 

 Mr. Soriano stated we have an updated proposal for installation of 6 30-gallon crape 

myrtles on Azalea Ridge Boulevard or we could just put sod. 

 Ms. Tennison stated that also includes azaleas in each those areas 

 Mr. Barnhouse stated we installed the irrigation and everyone at the meetings said they 

wanted color on that road.   

 Mr. Soriano stated if we want to continue with more crape myrtles and azaleas, give us 

extra above the $5,000 and we can work with Brightview if you want to fill in the space more and 

you are still under the original Tree Amigos proposal.  You could approve a not to exceed rather 

than the cost of the crape myrtles.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Ms. Miller with all in favor 
staff was authorized to proceed with Brighview and install 6 30-
gallon crape myrtles and azaleas on Azalea Ridge Boulevard in an 
amount not to exceed $7,000. 

 

 Light Poles 

 Mr. Soriano stated I do have a couple items, we talked about two items, lights is the first 

one.  We do still need information for trenching and electrical if we wanted to move forward with 

that.  Originally, we put money in the budget for those lights then through the budget process 

because of the assessment increase everyone wanted to cut stuff out and we took it out.  We can 

use capital, but it is not in there for that project.  I estimate $2,500 per light.   

 Ms. Miller stated we can get away with two, but we have to put lights there, it is pitch 

black.   

 Mr. Genska stated this is for safety, I would say three.   



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

15 

 Mr. Soriano stated if you are concerned about the budget we can start with two and we can 

spread them out.  

 Mr. Schroyer ask could we put up two poles but brighter lights?  Wouldn’t it light up a lot 

more of the roadway? 

 Mr. Soriano stated you are just increasing costs these are Clay Electric lights and it is going 

to be added to your meter right now.  Usually with the light poles, you have two types of bills for 

lighting, one is flat rate where they come out and fix all the bulbs, they will not do any extra bulbs 

any brighter, they do one type bulb.  On the meter side, which we are going to go we have the 

option of dealing with our own stuff and I highly recommend LED lights and it will be a lower 

cost, but you have a higher cost of getting them.  We could have a brighter fixture but we have to 

deal with it ourselves, we can’t call Clay Electric and say there is a light out.  You still have to do 

the maintenance, I have to get up there and get the light out and send it back to the company and 

they send us a new bulb.  Some lights have a seven-year warranty.   

 Big LED lights are from $300 to $800 and these are bright, so we are adding quite a few 

hundred dollars per pole.  We will get the $750 pole and add an expensive light bulb to it.  I need 

$6,000 to look at two poles.  

 A resident stated a small amount of light in a dark area provides a lot of light and bollard 

lights are less expensive and you can easily change the bulbs. 

 Mr. Soriano stated the biggest cost is the electrician and labor.  With a not to exceed amount 

of $6,000 I will do two poles and if I am able to get him to trench and put a base in and get it ready 

to go.   

 Mr. Schroyer asked where is the money going to come from? 

 Mr. Soriano stated it has to come from your capital or I have to be able to save from repair 

and replacement.   

 Ms. Giles stated you do have money in the capital reserves. 

 Mr. Schroyer stated the reason the assessments went up this year was to fund the capital 

reserve.  I agree the lights are needed, but we are just spending money we don’t have.   

 Mr. Soriano stated just to get clarification, one point I have to make is months ago I 

mentioned we were over budget in a lot of lines, we were working hard all the way to the end of 

the year to try to correct what we could and save money.  Vandalism made the repair and replace 

line go up pretty high and we spent money on security to counteract that but that is money we 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

16 

didn’t plan for.  Your financials are sitting pretty good up to this last month so the actual through 

9/30 was under for grounds maintenance and amenity side and there are savings in each one of 

those lines I can find and if that comes to $6,000 that is where we will get it. 

 Mr. Genska asked if we don’t have the money and we took this out of the budget for a 

reason and why did we take it out if it was a safety issue?  

 Mr. Soriano stated at the time everyone was looking at the budget and saw some lines under 

budget and we did cut some things out and this was one of them.  We have repair and replacement. 

 Ms. Giles stated you will see your financials as of September 30th although some individual 

lines were over, the budget overall had money left over.   

 Mr. Soriano stated one big goal we had last year is you had another project that has been 

tabled for quite some time.  When I came in we were looking at a playground and that is a much 

larger expense of about $60,000.  We didn’t have enough in our capital so we are building that up 

now and that is one of our first real large capital projects we want to get to.  Every time we pull 

$5,000 to $7,000 out, we extend that.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated keep in mind the carry forward is made up of two components, one 

is designated as capital reserve money and the other is the money that is supposed to get your 

through October, November, December until you get your tax receipts in.  It sounds like you have 

a lot of money in the bank, but you really don’t.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with three 
in favor and Mr. Schroyer opposed staff was authorized to have two 
light poles with LED lights installed in an amount not to exceed 
$6,000. 

 

 Mr. Soriano stated the last item you cannot make a decision tonight but it is something we 

need direction on, it does take time to go through.  Even if it is something we come to a decision 

on in the future, you have to do a rate hearing when we change any rate.  We are looking at rentals.  

One of the big arguments we had in this room when we were doing the budget was looking at 

every dollar and we discussed charging vendors and things like that.  You can raise the rental in 

this room that is extremely low, even $100 is well under the surrounding area.  You rent this room 

for $50.  We would like to separate the time so we have time slots.  For another $25 you get a 

private pool, other places that do that get $1,000 or more to rent out a privatized pool.  You could 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

17 

be making a little more money and if you take it to $100 or $150 people may complain but that is 

still a good benefit if you live in this neighborhood.  We need direction of how you want us to go 

about that and if there is a decision down the road we will have a public hearing.   

 Ms. Giles stated Jay and Taylor will bring you a draft amenity center policy that will have 

that in there, we will establish a public hearing date.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated we want to set a public hearing date for January and the maximum.  

All we do when we set a public hearing is we publish the maximum amount the board can adopt 

and at that time it will be an opportunity for anybody at the meeting to say it is a great rate, that is 

a terrible rate, and the board will adjust it downward if they like or they could leave it as published 

but they can’t go higher.   

 Mr. Soriano stated income from the rental helps offset assessments and they stay lower if 

we are bringing in a few more dollars.  We can put in $75 for the room and $75 for the pool. 

 Ms. Buchanan asked do we have a deposit? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we do.  Your deposit when you rent the room and pool is $500 but you 

get it back assuming there is no damage.   

 Mr. Schroyer stated do $100 for the room and $50 for the pool.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated I suggest $100 for each and at the public hearing you can go down if 

you so choose.   

 A resident stated if you are looking at doubling your profit the easiest way to do that is to 

block it in four hour blocks. 

 Mr. Soriano stated that is for Saturdays and Sundays, but we can’t do that for week days.  

We are going to talk about that.   

 A resident stated from everyone who was here tonight this community center is part of 

what is so awesome about all these fees we are paying and now you are trying to raise it.  I heard 

someone wanted to triple it and that is excessive.  It is important to remember that the community 

is paying for this and tripling something is not fair. 

 Mr. Soriano stated we have direction and we will notice it and that is the max. 

 

F. Amenity Manager 

 Report 

 A copy of the amenity manager’s report was included in the agenda package. 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

18 

 

 Landscape Inspection Report 

 A copy of the quality site assessment was included in the agenda package. 

 

 Landscape Proposals 

 This item taken earlier in the meeting. 

 

 Discussion of Lake Maintenance 

 This item taken earlier in the meeting. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 

 Additional comments: not in favor of doubling rental rates, several sprinklers on the main 

entrance has been broken and is pushing the sand out, there is also a lot of trash in that area, limit 

hours of rentals, so someone doesn’t have it all day, holidays are already excluded from the rentals, 

never uses the amenities but still pay O&M, do residents pay for studies and research, disagrees 

with rental increases, the HOA and CDD funded some events, parking on both sides of the roads, 

need for additional parking areas, staff will eblast to the residents to park only on one side of the 

street and include the county ordinance dealing with parking, residents to notify the county to fix 

the parking issues. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 10, 2022 Workshop 

B. Approval of the Minutes of the September 7, 2022 Meeting 

 C. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 D. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 E. Approval of Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Ms. Miller with all in favor 
the consent agenda items were approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for Wednesday, 
January 4, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. Location TBD 



November 2, 2022 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

19 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting will be held January 4, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.  We will 

research a location for that meeting and send that information to the board. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Schroyer with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 9:48 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
November	30,	2022



1

2-3

4-5

6

7

8

9

Long Term Debt Summary

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund Income Statement

Month to Month

Capital Reserve Fund Income Statement

Debt Service Fund Series 2007A Income Statement



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

TOTALS
	 GENERAL	 CAPITAL	RESERVE DEBT	SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
	 FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

ASSETS:   

CASH $25,840 $89,924 --- $115,763
INVESTMENTS - STATE BOARD $31,922 --- --- $31,922
INVESTMENTS - US BANK - GENERAL FUND $40,113 --- --- $40,113
INVESTMENTS - STATE BOARD - CAPITAL RESERVE --- $77,970 --- $77,970

INVESTMENTS  
Reserve A --- --- $9,688 $9,688
Revenue A --- --- $1,984 $1,984

DEPOSITS $2,803 --- --- $2,803
DUE FROM GENERAL FUND --- $10,929 --- $10,929
DUE FROM CAPITAL RESERVES --- --- --- $0
DUE FROM OTHER --- --- --- $0

TOTAL ASSETS $100,677 $178,823 $11,672 $291,172

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $11,585 --- --- $11,585
ACCRUED EXPENSES $778 --- --- $778
DUE TO CAPITAL RESERVE $10,929 --- --- $10,929

TOTAL LIABILITIES $23,292 $0 $0 $23,292

FUND BALANCES:
     UNASSIGNED $74,583 --- --- $74,583
     NONSPENDABLE $2,803 --- --- $2,803
     ASSIGNED $0 --- --- $0
     ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL RESERVE $0 $178,823 --- $178,823
     RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE --- --- $11,672 $11,672
    
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $77,385 $178,823 $11,672 $267,881

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY $100,677 $178,823 $11,672 $291,172

November 30, 2022

1



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET	 THRU	11/30/22 THRU	11/30/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES: 
Assessments - Tax Roll $554,270 $36,138 $36,138 $0
Interest Earned/Misc. Income $200 $33 $9,469 $9,435
Rental Revenue $500 $83 $950 $867

TOTAL REVENUES $554,970 $36,255 $46,557 $10,302

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisor Fees $8,000 $1,333 $800 $533
FICA Expense $612 $102 $61 $41
Engineering $3,000 $500 $0 $500
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $5,260 $0
Arbitrage $600 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $1,000 $167 $167 $0
Attorney $12,000 $2,000 $1,167 $833
Annual Audit $3,190 $0 $0 $0
Trustee $5,650 $1,048 $1,048 $0
Management Fees $45,675 $7,613 $7,613 $0
Information Technology $1,800 $300 $300 $0
Website Maintenance $1,200 $200 $200 $0
Telephone $350 $58 $106 ($48)
Postage (1) $800 $133 $494 ($360)
Printing & Binding (1) $1,500 $250 $1,437 ($1,187)
Insurance $8,212 $8,212 $7,358 $854
Legal Advertising $1,800 $300 $0 $300
Other Current Charges $1,000 $167 $9 $158
Office Supplies $250 $42 $1 $41
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $102,074 $27,860 $26,195 $1,665

AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $19,505 $19,505 $19,465 $40
Amenity Manager $63,600 $10,600 $10,600 $0
Facility Assistant $5,000 $833 $0 $833
General Facility Maintenance $11,500 $1,917 $624 $1,292
Repairs & Replacements $15,000 $2,500 $13,185 ($10,685)
Lifeguards $17,344 $0 $0 $0
Pool Maintenance $16,865 $2,811 $2,811 ($0)
Pool Chemicals $12,640 $2,107 $1,555 $551
Other Current Charges $1,000 $167 $0 $167
Water & Sewer $13,500 $2,250 $1,969 $281
Electric $14,000 $2,333 $2,849 ($516)
Internet/Cable $5,600 $933 $933 ($0)
Janitorial $10,583 $1,764 $1,764 $0
Janitorial Supplies $2,500 $417 $222 $195
Security System $8,700 $1,450 $2,545 ($1,095)
Refuse Service $2,500 $417 $406 $11
Special Events $10,000 $553 $553 $0
Pool Permit $382 $0 $0 $0
Pest Control $1,000 $167 $49 $118
Capital Reserve $35,525 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $266,743 $50,722 $59,530 ($8,808)

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

For the Period Ended November 30, 2022

2



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET	 THRU	11/30/22 THRU	11/30/22 VARIANCE

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

For the Period Ended November 30, 2022

EXPENDITURES:

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:
Operations Management $22,948 $3,825 $3,825 $0
Access Cards $1,000 $167 $0 $167
Electric $9,000 $1,500 $2,417 ($917)
Water $8,300 $1,383 $1,064 $319
Repairs & Maintenance $18,200 $3,033 $718 $2,315
Landscape Maintenance $104,704 $17,451 $20,584 ($3,133)
Landscape Contingency $10,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667
Lake Maintenance $12,000 $2,000 $1,344 $656

TOTAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $186,152 $31,025 $29,951 $1,074

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $554,970 $109,607 $115,676 ($6,069)

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 ($69,119)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $146,505

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $77,385

(1) Includes cost for mailed notice to Freedom Neighborhood.

3



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MONTH TO MONTH
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

REVENUES:
Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $36138 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,138
Interest Earned/Misc. Income $154 $9314 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,469
Rental Revenue $750 $200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950
TOTAL REVENUES $904 $45,653 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,557 

EXPENDITURES: ADMINISTRATIVE
Supervisor Fees $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 
FICA Expense $0 $61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $61 
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Assessment Roll $5,260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,260 
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Dissemination $83 $83 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $167 
Attorney $1,167 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,167 
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Trustee $1,048 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,048 
Management Fees $3,806 $3,806 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,613 
Information Technology $150 $150 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 
Website Maintenance $100 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 
Telephone $31 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $106 
Postage (1) $35 $459 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $494 
Printing & Binding (1) $137 $1,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,437 
Insurance $7,358 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,358 
Legal Advertising $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Other Current Charges $0 $9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9 
Office Supplies $0 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175 
ADMINISTRATIVE TOTALS $19,351 $6,844 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,195

EXPENDITURES: AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $19,465 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,465 
Amenity Manager $5,300 $5,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,600 
General Facility Maintenance $624 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $624 
Repairs & Replacements $5,843 $7,343 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,185 
Lifeguards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pool Maintenance $1,405 $1,405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,811 
Pool Chemicals $778 $778 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,555 
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Water & Sewer $1,127 $843 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,969 
Electric $1,365 $1,484 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,849 
Internet/Cable $461 $473 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $933 
Janitorial $882 $882 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,764 
Janitorial Supplies $0 $222 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $222 
Security System $530 $2,015 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,545 
Refuse Service $191 $215 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $406 
Special Events $553 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $553 
Pool Permit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pest Control $49 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $49 
Capital Reserve $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
AMENITY CENTER TOTALS $38,572 $20,958 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $59,530

4



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MONTH TO MONTH
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

EXPENDITURES: GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
Operations Management $1,912 $1,912 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,825 
Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Electric $1,169 $1,248 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,417 
Water $476 $588 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,064 
Repairs & Maintenance $718 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $718 
Landscape Maintenance $10,292 $10,292 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,584 
Landscape Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Lake Maintenance $672 $672 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,344 
Capital Outlay - Streetlighting $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

GROUND MAINTENANCE TOTAL $15,239 $14,712 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,951

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $73,162 $42,514 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $115,676

EXCESS REV/(EXP) ($72,258) $3,138 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($69,119)

5



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
CAPITAL RESERVE

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 11/30/22  THRU 11/30/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Capital Reserve Transfer In $35,525 $0  $0 $0
Interest Income $250 $42  $459 $417

    
 TOTAL REVENUES $35,775 $42 $459 $417

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Reserves $60,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Amenity Improvement Project $4,500 $750 $0 $750
Other Curent Charges $600 $100 $0 $100
Repair & Maintenance $10,000 $1,667 $1,213 $454

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $75,100 $12,517 $1,213 $11,304

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) (39,325)$       (754)$                

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $180,647 $179,577

FUND BALANCE - Ending $141,322 $178,823

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended November 30, 2022

6



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND - 2007A

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 11/30/22  THRU 11/30/22 VARIANCE

 
REVENUES:
Assessments - On Roll $13,359 $871 $871 $0
Interest Income $0 $0  $58 $58

    
TOTAL REVENUES $13,359 $871 $929 $58

EXPENDITURES:

Interest Expense - 11/1 $3,814 $3,814 $3,814 $0
Interest Expense - 5/1 $3,814 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1  $5,000 $0 $0 $0

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $12,628 $3,814 $3,814 $0

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $732 ($2,885)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $4,856 $14,557

FUND BALANCE - Ending $5,588 $11,672

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended November 30, 2022

7



Series 2007A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Interest Rate: 5.650%
Maturity Date: 5/1/2038
Reserve Fund Definition:
Reserve Fund Requirement (6.949% of Outstanding Bonds): $9,381
Reserve Fund Balance: $9,688

Bonds outstanding - 6/1/2019 $150,000
Less:  May 1, 2020 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Mandatory) ($5,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $135,000

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2023 Assessments Receipts Summary

ASSESSED
# UNITS 

ASSESSED

SERIES 2007A
DEBT SERVICE 

ASSESSED
FY23 O&M 
ASSESSED

TOTAL 
ASSESSED

NET TAX ROLL ASSESSED 691 13,358.77            554,282.37       567,641.14       

TOTAL ASSESSED 691 13,358.77           554,282.37       567,641.14      

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION
DATE 

RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
SERIES 2007A 

DEBT RECEIPTS O&M RECEIPTS
1 11/09/22 1,103.67              25.97 1,077.70           
2 11/16/22 19,001.27            447.17               18,554.10         
3 11/28/22 16,904.14            397.82               16,506.32         
4 12/12/22 474,928.58         11,176.89         463,751.69       

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS           511,937.66           12,047.85        499,889.81 

PERCENT COLLECTED TOTAL DEBT O&M
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 90.19% 90.19% 90.19%

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
Fund Date Check Numbers Amount

 

General Fund
 10/1/22 - 10/31/22 2368-2386 $39,697.94

11/1/22 - 11/30/22 2387-2402 $37,990.95
$77,688.89

Capital Reserve
11/28/22 27 $1,212.87

$1,212.87

Autopayments
10/4/22 CCUA $1,798.39
10/3/22 Clay Electric $2,535.30
10/6/22 Comcast $207.27
10/5/22 Waste Pro $191.21

10/12/22 Comcast $253.58
10/28/22 Newlane Finance $395.12
10/28/22 CCUA $1,602.64
10/31/22 Clay Electric $38.00
11/2/22 Clay Electric $2,495.65
11/3/22 Waste Pro $214.80
11/7/22 Comcast $207.27

11/14/22 Comcast $265.27
11/29/22 Newlane Finance $395.12
11/30/22 Clay Electric $2,731.97
11/30/22 CCUA $1,430.49

$14,762.08

Total  $93,663.84

* Fedex invoices and Autopayments available upon request.

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
Community Development District

Check Run Summary
10/1/2022 - 11/30/2022



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 12/20/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/14/22 00119 10/01/22 8115863  202210 330-53800-46200                                     *           10,292.00
OCT LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                              10,292.00 002368
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00122 8/31/22 4846305  202208 310-51300-48000                                     *              417.24

NOTICE OF MEETINGS FY23
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS,LLC                                           417.24 002369

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00070 9/08/22 SS110750 202208 320-57200-34500                                     *              150.00

AUG EMPLOYMENT ADMIN FEE
9/08/22 SS110750 202208 320-57200-34500                                     *              100.00

AUG EMPLOYMENT SCHEDULING
10/11/22 SSI10784 202209 320-57200-34500                                     *              132.50

SEP EMPLOYMENT ADMIN FEE
10/11/22 SSI10784 202209 320-57200-34500                                     *              100.00

SEP EMPLOYMENT SCHEDULING
CLAY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE                                      482.50 002370

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00107 10/26/21 10262021 202110 320-57200-34500                                     *              120.00

10/26/21 SECURITY
5/08/22 05082022 202206 320-57200-34500                                     *              152.00

5/08/22 SECURITY
DAVID ANDREW WIDERGREN                                            272.00 002371

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00048 6/30/22 27854    202206 320-57200-46000                                     *            1,594.50

FITNESS EQUIPMENT REPAIR
FITNESSPRO                                                      1,594.50 002372

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00099 8/16/22 885332 7 202208 320-57200-43200                                     *               45.00

AUG PEST CONTROL
9/22/22 886420 9 202209 320-57200-43200                                     *               45.00

SEP PEST CONTROL
FLORIDA PEST CONTROL                                               90.00 002373

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00003 9/15/22 235      202210 310-51300-31400                                     *            5,260.00

FY23 ASSESSMENT ROLL CERT
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,260.00 002374

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00003 10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,806.25

OCT MANAGEMENT FEES
10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-35200                                     *              100.00

OCT WEBSITE ADMIN
10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

OCT INFORMATION TECH
10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-31300                                     *               83.33

OCT DISSEM AGENT SERVICES

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 12/20/22          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-42000                                     *               34.86
POSTAGE

10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-42500                                     *              136.95
COPIES

10/01/22 236      202210 310-51300-41000                                     *               31.20
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,342.59 002375
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00108 9/26/22 09262022 202209 330-53800-34500                                     *              152.00

9/26/22 SECURITY
HALSTON BLAKE JONES                                               152.00 002376

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00117 9/22/22 3110607  202208 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,576.00

AUG GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  1,576.00 002377

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00042 10/01/22 36335B   202210 330-53800-46400                                     *              672.00

OCT LAKE MANAGEMENT
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            672.00 002378

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00095 10/01/22 13129560 202210 320-57200-52100                                     *              777.60

OCT POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                          777.60 002379

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00039 10/01/22 318      202210 320-57200-34200                                     *              881.92

OCT JANITORIAL SERVICES
10/01/22 318      202210 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,405.42

OCT POOL MAINT SERVICES
10/01/22 318      202210 330-53800-34000                                     *            1,912.33

OCT CONTRACT ADMIN
10/01/22 318      202210 320-57200-46200                                     *            5,300.00

OCT FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             9,499.67 002380

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00120 10/07/22 10072022 202210 320-57200-46000                                     *               85.96

FITNESS CTR PAINT REIMBUR
ROBERT ALBA                                                        85.96 002381

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00111 9/05/22 09052022 202209 330-53800-34500                                     *              212.00

9/5/22 HOLIDAY SECURITY
ROBERT T. BASSLER                                                 212.00 002382

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/14/22 00121 9/20/22 70832977 202209 320-57200-52200                                     *              128.20

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
9/20/22 70832978 202209 320-57200-52200                                     *               42.89

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
THE HOME DEPOT PRO                                                171.09 002383

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 12/20/22          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/14/22 00118 9/21/22 70807226 202210 320-57200-34510                                     *              135.00
OCT SECURITY CAMERAS

VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               135.00 002384
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/24/22 00117 10/14/22 3124397  202209 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,831.00

SEP GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  1,831.00 002385

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/24/22 00039 10/13/22 319      202209 330-53800-46000                                     *            1,594.44

SEP FIELD MAINTENANCE RPR
10/13/22 319      202209 320-57200-52100                                     *              240.35

SEP POOL CHEMICALS
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             1,834.79 002386

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/03/22 00123 10/20/22 69978    202210 320-57200-46000                                     *              205.00

RPRD A/C UNIT
AIR-MAX HEATING & COOLING,INC.                                    205.00 002387

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/03/22 00055 9/01/22 85487    202208 330-53800-46000                                     *               45.00

BACKFLOW TEST
BOB'S BACKFLOW & PLUMBING SERVICES                                 45.00 002388

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/03/22 00007 10/03/22 86877    202210 310-51300-54000                                     *              175.00

FY23 SPECIAL DISTRICT FEE
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY                                175.00 002389

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/03/22 00042 10/26/22 19260B   202208 330-53800-46400                                     *              672.00

AUG LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            672.00 002390

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/03/22 00124 10/24/22 26570    202210 320-57200-43200                                     *               49.00

RODENT PEST CONTROL
QUICK CATCH,INC.                                                   49.00 002391

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/14/22 00125 11/10/22 OCT FEST 202210 320-57200-49500                                     *              552.50

OCTOBER FEST
AZALEA RIDGE HOMEWOWNERS ASSOC INC                                552.50 002392

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/14/22 00119 11/01/22 8137358  202211 330-53800-46200                                     *           10,292.00

NOV LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                              10,292.00 002393

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/14/22 00003 11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,806.25

NOV MANAGEMENT FEES
11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-35200                                     *              100.00

NOV WEBSITE ADMIN

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 12/20/22          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00
NOV INFO TENCHNOLOGY

11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-31300                                     *               83.33
NOV DISSEMINATION

11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .66
OFFICE SUPPLIES

11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-42500                                     *               50.40
COPIES

11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-41000                                     *               75.01
TELEPHONE

11/01/22 237      202211 310-51300-42000                                     *               44.25
POSTAGE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,309.90 002394
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/14/22 00042 11/01/22 44896B   202211 330-53800-46400                                     *              672.00

NOV LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            672.00 002395

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/14/22 00039 11/01/22 320      202211 320-57200-34200                                     *              881.92

NOV JANITORIAL SERVICES
11/01/22 320      202211 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,405.42

NOV POOL MAINTENANCE
11/01/22 320      202211 330-53800-34000                                     *            1,912.33

NOV CONTRACT ADMIN
11/01/22 320      202211 320-57200-46200                                     *            5,300.00

NOV FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             9,499.67 002396

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/14/22 00091 9/30/22 18576    202209 330-53800-46200                                     *            4,194.90

SEP LANDSCAPE MAINT 1/2MO
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES                                    4,194.90 002397

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/28/22 00088 11/25/22 144351   202211 310-51300-42500                                     *            1,249.61

HOA NOTICE ASSESSSMENTS
11/25/22 144351   202211 310-51300-42000                                     *              414.60

HOA NOTICE POSTAGE
ADVANCED DIRECT MARKETING SERVICES                              1,664.21 002398

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/28/22 00123 10/27/22 75216    202210 320-57200-46000                                     *              215.00

AC SERVICE
AIR-MAX HEATING & COOLING,INC.                                    215.00 002399

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/28/22 00123 11/01/22 70100    202211 320-57200-46000                                     *              142.50

AC SRVC CALL NOT COOLING
AIR-MAX HEATING & COOLING,INC.                                    142.50 002400

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 12/20/22          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/28/22 00039 11/18/22 322      202210 320-57200-46000                                     *              359.83
OCT AMENITY RPR/RPLC

11/18/22 322      202210 320-57200-46100                                     *              624.25
OCT GEN FACILITY MAINT

11/18/22 322      202210 330-53800-46000                                     *              718.19
OCT FIELD RPR/RPLC

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             1,702.27 002401
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/28/22 00075 11/21/22 WO5875   202211 320-57200-46000                                     *            3,600.00

4 TON HEAT PUMP CONDENSER
TOOLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.                                        3,600.00 002402

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 77,688.89

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               77,688.89

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO































































































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 12/20/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS - CAP RES

BANK D RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/28/22 00024 11/18/22 322      202210 600-53800-60100                                     *            1,212.87
GYM RENOVATIONS

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             1,212.87 000027
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK D                  1,212.87

TOTAL FOR REGISTER                1,212.87

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO








	Agenda
	III. A.  Appointment of Supervisors to Fill Vacant Seats 
	C.        Consideration of Resolution 2023-01, Election of Officers 
	IV.       Consideration of Request by Freedom HOA to Amend the District’s Boundaries to Remove the Freedom Section +
	VI.       Consideration of Resolution 2023-02, Regarding Records Retention Policy 
	VII. E. 1.            Report
	2.   Landscape Inspection Report 
	IX. A.        Approval of the Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Meeting 
	B.        Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
	C.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	D.  Approval of Check Register 



